
1
Tuesday, October 11, 2016

STEUBEN COUNTY FINANCE COMMITTEE
Special Meeting

Tuesday, October 11, 2016
10:35 a.m.

Legislative Committee Room
Steuben County Office Building

Bath, New York

**MINUTES**

COMMITTEE: Scott J. Van Etten, Chair Gary D. Swackhamer, Vice Chair Kelly H. Fitzpatrick
Brian C. Schu

STAFF: Jack K. Wheeler Mitchell Alger Tammy Hurd-Harvey
Judy Hunter

LEGISLATORS: Joseph J. Hauryski Dan C. Farrand Carol A. Ferratella
K. Michael Hanna Hilda T. Lando Robin K. Lattimer
Steven Maio John V. Malter Aaron I. Mullen

OTHERS: Mary Perham

I. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Van Etten called the meeting to order at 10:35 a.m.

II. BUDGET OVERVIEW

Mr. Wheeler stated the team has done a good job of preparing a draft budget for you. The budget is currently
compliant with the tax cap. We are not in a position where we need to find significant cuts. We typically roll
over the 2016 budget to start 2017. Then the departments submit their requests. We review and make our
recommendations. He stated that he provided those changes on a spreadsheet and they are already incorporated
into the budget.

Traffic Diversion Program
We moved the Traffic Diversion Program revenues from the District Attorney’s budget and appropriated them to the
Traffic Diversion Program budget. The $108,000 in revenue in the District Attorney’s budget has been moved into the
Traffic Diversion Program budget.

Assigned Counsel
Mr. Wheeler commented we are trying to reflect more of the true costs of the Assigned Counsel Program. Generally,
there are contingent fund transfers each year to fund the shortfalls. We have increased some of the line items to show
actual cost, but we should also see some savings from the addition of the Conflict Defender’s Office.

Tax Acquired Property
Mr. Wheeler stated we have been approved as a land bank. The next step is waiting for the funding from the State. We
have appropriated $50,000 for startup costs of the Land Bank. If we do not get the State funds, then we will not spend
that money. The City of Hornell will be contributing $25,000 and we are waiting to see if any of the other municipalities
will be willing to contribute funding.

Elections
Mr. Wheeler stated the County cost fluctuates depending on the number of elections in a given year, the printing of the
ballots and other factors. For 2017, we do show an increased County cost.



2
Tuesday, October 11, 2016

Information Technology
Mr. Wheeler stated, at the request of the IT Director, we have combined the budgets for Information Technology and
Telephonic Communications. Telephonic Communications has three staff and it will be easier to track if they are
combined into one budgetary category.

Jail
We have a better handle on the Overtime and Temporary Hire costs in the Jail. The Sheriff has done a good job in what
they have done with regard to tracking sick leave to reduce temporary hire costs. We did increase those line items to
better reflect actual costs.

Public Works
Mr. Wheeler stated we have received an additional $1 million in CHIPs funding. NYS has approved a five-year plan for
PAVE NY and Bridge NY. The money is pretty solid for this year and the following two years. Most of this will be
going toward construction costs. We also had a significant savings in the fuel line items.

Office for the Aging
Mr. Wheeler stated that overall the budget looks good. The BIPP program is going away and the money in the line item
for that program is being spread out among other line items.

Requests from Outside Agencies
Mr. Wheeler stated that they did receive a request from CSS Workforce NY for $40,000. This funding will be used to
assist with the coordination of workforce development activities for the I-86 corridor initiative.

Salary Schedule
Mr. Wheeler noted that there was an error in the Court Security part-time salary schedule. Those salaries were double
printed, so the actual will be half of what is listed. Also, under the Conflict Defender, we have $48,000 as a placeholder.
That amount should be $35,000.

Tax Cap
Mrs. Hurd-Harvey distributed and reviewed the tax levy limit calculation. The prior year levy was $50 million and after
all of the State deductions, it is down to $42 million. The maximum that we could increase taxes would be $401,368. Mr.
Wheeler stated with the carryover, that is about $50,000 less than that right now in the current budget. On a $50 million
levy, we are talking about .5 percent levy increase, or not even. That gives you $150,000 of carryover for next year as
well.

MOTION: ACCEPTING THE 2017 BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS AS RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET
OFFICER MADE BY MR. SWACKHAMER. SECONDED BY MS. FITZPATRICK. ALL BEING IN FAVOR.
MOTION CARRIES 3-0. (MR. SCHU ABSENT FOR VOTE)

Mr. Van Etten asked Mr. Wheeler to provide a summary of the big items, such pension and health insurance. Mr.
Wheeler stated we do see some savings in those areas. Our NYS retirement contribution is down a little. We are
seeing savings in health insurance as well. Mrs. Hurd-Harvey reminded the committee that the County is self-
funded. We have an equivalent premium and we over budgeted for that in 2016. This year we were able to get
the equivalent premium amount earlier in the process and that dropped the amount down a little bit. This year
based on actual, we are seeing a $400,000 savings for budget purposes. Mr. Wheeler commented we also still
have a good reserve to use in the event of catastrophic claims.

III. 2017 BUDGET REVIEW

The committee reviewed the tentative 2017 budget and asked questions regarding various departments. The items
listed below are those questions that were unable to be answered during the meeting:



3
Tuesday, October 11, 2016

DA – STOP DWI
Mr. Van Etten commented the Salaries and Wages line item for 2017 represents a 12 percent increase over the current
year. Is that due to another resource into the program? Mr. Wheeler replied he will check on that. It may represent the
vehicle lease which is considered a taxable benefit.

Elections
Mr. Van Etten asked why is there a new line item for Rent Building & Property with $4,500. We store our equipment at
our building. Mrs. Hurd-Harvey commented that is no longer our building. Mr. Wheeler stated he will check that.

Records Management
Mr. Van Etten stated similar to Elections, there is a new line item for Rent Building & Property with $4,500 budgeted.
Mr. Wheeler stated he will check into that.

Central Copying
Mr. Van Etten asked why are we budgeting $30,000 for Copier Supplies for 2017 when year-to-date they have only spent
$10,000? Mr. Wheeler stated he will check. Mrs. Hurd-Harvey commented that line was set up to track the actual costs
of copier supplies.

E-911
Mr. Van Etten asked why does the Equipment Maintenance/Repair line item have almost $400,000 budgeted for 2017?
Mr. Wheeler replied that is for all of the technology we maintain or lease. A lot of that is software maintenance. We
could make an adjustment to that to split out software and equipment.

Sheriff
Mr. Van Etten asked why did the line item for Maintenance Contracts increase from $2,500 in 2016 to $11,000 in 2017?
Mr. Wheeler replied he believes that represents Johnson Controls and $8,500 is for the Offender Watch software. He will
follow up with the Sheriff.

Jail
Mr. Van Etten asked why we have $0 budgeted for 2017 for the Food Service line item, but we have spent $45,278.11
year-to-date? Mr. Wheeler replied we have two cooks in the Jail for a total of $69,000. They are listed on the salary
schedule and are included in the Salaries and Wages line item. He will check to make sure that the Food Service Helpers
are also included in the budget.

Public Health
Mr. Van Etten asked why have we budgeted $20,000 for Unemployment Insurance for 2017, but nothing has been spent
year-to-date? Mrs. Hurd-Harvey replied we had that line item during the department turnover. She does not believe they
need that line anymore, and she will check to see if they can remove it.

Special Children’s Services
Mr. Van Etten asked why does the line item for SCS Admin – (DOH) show a 2016 budget of $2,000 and a 2017 budget of
$30,000? Mr. Wheeler stated he will check on that.

PROS Services
Mr. Van Etten asked why the large jump in the line item for NYS OMH revenue from $71,430 in 2015 to $372,359 in
2017 and year-to-date have received $68,747? Mr. Wheeler stated he will check.

Social Services Administration
Mr. Van Etten asked why have we budgeted $30,000 for 2017 for Micrographic Expenses when we have spent $0 year-to-
date? Mr. Wheeler stated he will check.



4
Tuesday, October 11, 2016

DSS – Client Related
Mr. Van Etten asked with regard to the Legal Advocate Chargeback line item, why has the cost doubled over the past two
years, we have spent $27,882 year-to-date and have budgeted $122,000 for 2017? Mr. Wheeler stated we will check on
the timing and expenses.

TANF Administration
Mr. Van Etten asked with regard to Child Care Registration line item, we have spent $24,601.92 year-to-date, and are
budgeting $150,000 for 2017. Is this a timing issue? Mr. Wheeler replied they will check into this.

Services for Recipients
Mr. Van Etten asked how is this line item increasing, yet year-to-date they have received $196,306.10? Mr. Wheeler
stated he would ask for an explanation from the Commissioner.

Mr. Van Etten asked why are there two line items for Purchase of Services. Both of those lines are showing a decrease,
even year –to-date amortized they show an increase?

Child Care
Mr. Van Etten asked why is there such a difference between 2017 budgeted and year-to-date in the Foster Care and ADC
– Foster Care lines? Mr. Wheeler replied he will check to see if that is a timing issue.

Mr. Van Etten asked in the revenue line item for Federal Aid EAF, is the $739,180.62 year-to-date a correction? Mr.
Wheeler replied he will check.

Tourism & Publicity
Mr. Van Etten asked what is the line item for Conference & Visitors’ Bureau Research? Mr. Wheeler replied Mr.
Buganski requested $35,000 to provide a hospitality training session for any of the interested customer oriented service
organizations. The thought is that this will drive more room tax by having better customer service. They would engage
the services of a consultant to do that training.

Mr. Swackhamer stated he is not in favor of spending $35,000 to pay someone to come in and do that. Mr. Wheeler
commented this is something that would help the organizations to engage their customers more and better promote the
region. The goal is that you would see dividends by having better customer service.

Mr. Van Etten commented this is tough to justify. The only hard number you have is the cost. It is impossible to say
what the benefit will be two years later.

MOTION: REMOVING THE $35,000 FOR CONFERENCE & VISITOR BUREAU RESEARCH MADE BY
MR. SWACKHAMER.

Mr. Schu asked how concerned is Mr. Buganski about this? Mr. Wheeler replied this was a top priority. Mr. Schu stated
they will be training hundreds of people. We are going to get the benefit of that on the back end. Mr. Van Etten stated by
adding that $35,000 we are still bumping the county cost by that amount. Mr. Wheeler stated if you approve, the county
cost would go back to zero.

Secretary’s Note: Motion fails due to lack of a second.

Transfers to Capital Projects
Mr. Van Etten asked why is there is a $600,000 difference between the original 2016 budget and the modified 2016
budget? Mrs. Hurd-Harvey stated she will check into that and generate a list.

Machinery Highway
Mr. Van Etten asked why is the Machine & Equipment – Major line item showing a credit of $54,270.58? Mrs. Hurd-
Harvey stated she will check into that.



5
Tuesday, October 11, 2016

IV. SALARIES
Mr. Van Etten asked why is Mary Nobilski the highest paid employee in the County, other than the District

Attorney? Do we need both Psychologists and Psychiatrists? Mr. Wheeler replied Dr. Chapman is trying to use clinical
nurse practitioners, but we still need to have a Psychiatrist to oversee. We will be looking for more creative ways to
address this in the future.

V. OUTSIDE AGENCIES
Mr. Wheeler reviewed the outside agency requests for 2017. He noted that they are recommending $10,000 for

REDEC, $5,000 to STC for their Strategic Plan, $40,000 to CSS Workforce which will come out of the Economic
Development Fund, $749,815 for the Conference & Visitors’ Bureau, $43,200 for the Finger Lakes ARTS Council,
$99,500 for the Southern Tier Library System and $375,000 for Cornell Cooperative Extension.

VI. LEGISLATORS PAY
Mr. Wheeler distributed a handout showing an analysis of Legislator pay raise and his proposal to increase. The

Legislature has not had a raise since 2007. He is proposing raising the wage of Legislator to $12,500, which represents a
$1,000 increase and raising the pay for Chairman to $20,000 which represents a $2,000 increase. This would put you in
line with the average of the salaries in similar counties.

Mr. Schu commented that we actually have taken a pay cut because we increased our proportional share of our medical
insurance. This represents a modest increase and he does not have any problem with it.

MOTION: RECOMMENDING AN INCREASE IN LEGISLATOR SALARY TO $12,500 AND THE
CHAIRMAN SALARY TO $20,000 PER YEAR MADE BY MR. SCHU. SECONDED BY MR. SWACKHAMER
FOR DISCUSSION.

Mr. Van Etten commented he is in favor of this based on the fact that it has been ten years since there was an increase. If
you do not continue to slowly increment, then getting people of any value is a non-event.

VOTE ON PREVIOUS MOTION: ALL BEING IN FAVOR. MOTION CARRIES 4-0.

VII. CAPITAL PROJECTS/EQUIPMENT

Small Equipment – District Attorney
Mr. Van Etten asked what is the Callyo Surveillance Package Software? Mr. Wheeler replied that would be more
appropriate in the software maintenance line item. We had allocated Traffic Diversion Program funds against it last year.
We will remove it from the small equipment list and put it under software maintenance.

Mr. Swackhamer asked why are we spending $350 on four Steamlight Flashlights?

MOTION: REMOVING THE FOUR STEAMLIGHT FLASHLIGHTS TOTALING $350.00 FROM THE
DISTRICT ATTORNEYS SMALL EQUIPMENT LIST MADE BY MR. SWACKHAMER. SECONDED BY MS.
FITZPATRICK. ALL BEING IN FAVOR. MOTION CARRIES 4-0.

Small Equipment – Landfill
Mr. Van Etten asked what is the generator at the Landfill for? Mr. Wheeler replied he will ask for an explanation.

Major Equipment – Highway
Mr. Van Etten asked what is the 10’ enclosed trailer for? He commented that $10,000 for a 10’ trailer seems expensive.

Major Equipment – Landfill
Mr. Van Etten asked about the 4x4 pickup truck for the landfill. The cost for $40,000 seems a little high. What will it be
used for?



6
Tuesday, October 11, 2016

Major Equipment – Jail
Mr. Swackhamer asked is the transport vehicle for the Jail supposed to be new, or a replacement? Mr. Wheeler stated he
thought it was a replacement, but will check on that.

Respectfully Submitted by

Amanda L. Chapman
Deputy Clerk
Steuben County Legislature

**NEXT MEETING SCHEDULED FOR**
Wednesday, November 9, 2016
Legislative Committee Room

11:00 a.m. or Immediately Following Finance


